
Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

1 
 

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:32 p.m. on 
Tuesday, January 13, 2026. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell, Vilma D. Leake 
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Michael Bryant 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:    
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, which was followed by reading of the 
County’s Mission and Vision and the FY2026 Board Budget Priorities, introductions, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  
26- 0012 State of the County Health and Annual Communicable Disease Update   
 
The Board received an update of the County's key health indicators and communicable disease 
response.    
 
Background: Dr. Raynard Washington, Director of Public Health Department will provide an 
update on the County’s key health indicators and communicable disease response gave the 
presentation. 
 
 
Dr. Washington gave the presentation. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

2 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

3 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

4 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

5 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

6 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

7 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

8 
 

 
 
Dr. Washington gave the presentation. 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

9 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

10 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

11 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

12 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

13 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

14 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

15 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

16 
 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Griffin thanked Dr. Washington and the team, as well as offered recognition to the 
other members of the Health and Human Services Committee. He said the community impact 
scorecard was a State requirement. He said it was both transformative and absolutely critical. He 
said he wanted to highlight the utilization piece in that there were a number of residents who 
were thankful to the General Assembly and everyone who participated for the work done in 
getting more people on Medicaid for treatment and/or evaluation.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said it was previously mentioned that there were teenagers who were 
concerned about getting athletic physicals, but there were many young kids in households that 
were eligible for Medicaid and could get those things taken care of. He said he would like to see 
some indications of people getting yearly physicals and vaccines.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said it was important to recognize school nurses and additional healthcare 
specialists in addressing measles and other childhood diseases. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked what the teen suicide rate was and how many kids were going to the 
emergency room. She asked if they stayed in touch with the schools, both private and public. She 
said she didn’t think kids could go to school if they were not vaccinated and asked, of the 5000 
students who were not vaccinated, how many were exempt. She asked why there was a low 
inventory of the syphilis medication and if that was typical. 
 
Dr. Washington said they did keep in touch with schools, but they didn’t have much information 
on private or charter schools. He said the ER data came from hospital surveillance data, and they 
could see on a weekly basis why people were going to the ER, but they had minimal demographic 
information about them. He said they had a youth behavioral risk factor survey, which had been 
beneficial to help them in understanding public school students’ health behaviors, but there were 
disruptions in the Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System (YRBSS) with the new administration, 
which led to concerns about whether they’d be able to have that data source. He said the YRBSS 
did not include private schools.  
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

17 
 

Dr. Washington said students were required by law to be vaccinated by the 30th day of school, but 
if they did not meet expectations, they were supposed to be excluded from school. He said the 
superintendent did have the authority to extend beyond the 30th day for a period of time.  
 
Dr. Washington said the shortage of Vicilin was due to a supply chain issue with Pfizer, and it 
typically occurred several times a year. He said the supply in the County was okay for the time 
being, but due to the shortage, they were not able to treat non-pregnant women.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked if there were many adults who had the MMR (Measles, Mumps, and 
Rubella) vaccine as children and needed a follow-up. She asked if the anti-smoking campaign 
included vaping and if the cessation programs were free to the public. She said she believed the 
mental health reporting data was worse than what they were seeing on the graph and asked 
what factors Dr. Washington believed contributed to that. She asked if there was something in 
place that required reporting from the health care systems to the Health Department, so they 
knew every patient that had been treated for a sexually transmitted disease/infection (STD/STI) 
or if they were only aware of those treated by the County.  
 
Dr. Washington said there wasn’t a broad recommendation for boosters. He said individuals 
should check their records with their doctor. He said vaping was included with smoking, and the 
cessation work was centered around nicotine replacement therapy. He said the big issue was that 
the policy was regulated at the State level, which prevented them from doing much.  
 
Dr. Washington said mental health was underreported and a growing issue for them. He said 
social media had an impact on the mental health of the youth, while the pandemic had an impact 
on both adults and youth. He said, just like any other chronic issue, it would get worse. 
 
Dr. Washington said the information pertaining to who was treated for an STI/STD included 
counts for the entire community, not strictly those treated by the County. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification on slides 6 and 7 regarding access to 
care. She said the graphs didn’t line up well and asked what factors they controlled that could 
help bring the number down. Dr. Washington said it was just a report of how many said they 
didn’t have a primary care doctor. He said if they could get people to primary care, it would keep 
them out of urgent care. He said the staff assisted the recipients in finding an appropriate primary 
care doctor, and the County invested more than $3 million in safety net providers that provided 
care to anyone regardless of their ability to pay.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the safety net providers were considered primary 
care providers at the facilities. Dr. Washington said yes.   
 
Commissioner Leake asked how they got the information out to the public. She asked how they 
could handle those in the federal government who discredited the need for health care. She said 
she worried about the care of children and seniors and asked what they were doing to increase 
their knowledge and support. She said she worried about schooling when children weren’t in the 
care of the public due to their religion. Dr. Washington said they stayed in constant 
communication with the state. He said they had been as proactive as possible in communicating 
their science, data, and proof to the public. He said the state was doing the same. He said nothing 
had changed in NC concerning vaccine requirements or recommendations. He said confusion and 
misinformation could be prominent in social media, but they were there to provide answers to the 
public. He said they didn’t have much visibility in private and charter schools because they were 
separate. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked whether the schools reported to the County or were 
required to report if there was a child with a disease. She asked whether they had partnered with 
any organizations to provide information about primary care physicians. She asked if there were 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

18 
 

any programs that could speak to the crisis of black maternal health. Dr. Washington said that if 
an infectious disease was reported, they spoke to the person first to see if they could determine 
whom they may have exposed and then find the others to follow up and have them tested. He 
said that with children, they could find out what class they were in, who was in that class, etc., 
and then take action to get them vaccinated. He said they worked closely with MECK Link to 
provide the public with the information. He said they had several programs, such as CareRing, 
that brought together key stakeholders to discuss maternal mortality.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked if they were working with the school district on sex education to 
address the issue of STIs/STDs. He requested clarification regarding the information provided on 
HIV/AIDs and mentioned the previous year’s results, as he thought they were decreasing. He said 
the neighbors to the south had different vaccination rules, and there was a significant difference 
in results. Dr. Washington said they didn’t go into schools for sex education as they weren’t part 
of that. He said the HIV data wasn’t a full year, but they would close out all of 2025 in January of 
2026. He said 205 cases of HIV and 97 cases of AIDS were still too many, and they had to get 
people to voluntarily come in to get tested. 
 
Dr. Washington said the vaccine clinics were opened up to make appointments available for kids 
to come in. He said they had a whole campaign with childcare centers to promote vaccines. He 
said the mobile health team was at schools and coordinating with school health. He said school 
health was working to send letters home with the kids to receive consent for vaccinations.  
 
Commissioner Leake asked what hospitals provided support to those who couldn’t afford it. Dr. 
Washington said both Atrium and Novant had financial assistance programs and provided 
uncompensated care as part of those programs. He said that the previous year, Governor Cooper 
made big strides on medical debt by clearing billions of dollars in medical debt for residents across 
the state, but the challenge was getting people to become aware of the programs and how to 
apply for them.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said they needed a mindset change. She said kids didn’t think 
of sex education the same way older generations did. She asked how the process of informing 
the school and parents went, and if there were cases of STIs/STDs/HIV discovered.  Dr. 
Washington said the communicable disease team would distribute a letter to the school nurse 
and administrator, who would then distribute it to the parents.  
 
Commissioner Altman said she had a sense of relief and was grateful for the team and staff. She 
asked how many kids showed signs/signals before committing suicide. She asked if they could be 
asking more direct questions that, although uncomfortable, were more insightful and helpful.   
 
Commissioner Altman said she was shocked that MSM cases accounted for 69% of all new cases 
and asked for clarity regarding what MSM meant, as well as what could be done to reach that 
community. Dr. Washington said there wasn’t a single answer to her questions, and he would 
defer to follow up with further clarity. He said MSM included men who reported having sex with 
other men, but it was not solely focused on the sexual identity. He said it included several different 
sexualities, and a portion of the data identified those who used injection drugs as well.  
 
Commissioner Altman said there was a lot of great outreach to the LGBTQ+ community, but asked 
whether there was a significant amount of transmission they were not reaching because people 
may not be part of those typical social circles. She asked what method they were using to reach 
those people. Dr. Washington said they often used dating apps, but it was challenging to reach 
them because they were essentially looking for people who did not want to be found. He said they 
educate people when they were in their care.  
 
Chair Jerrell referred to the slide titled Youth Suicide Attempts in Mecklenburg County and said 
they obviously wanted the number to be zero. He said he was conflicted about the many variables 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

19 
 

beyond their control, and that assigning numbers to some of them was an interesting way to 
approach it. He said that, with the number of people coming into the community and everything 
they were doing, he wondered what the roles of government, society, parents, etc., were.  He 
said he wondered whether there was a limit to their responsibility, and he appreciated them 
having goals, but he did not feel the outcomes reflected the effort. Dr. Washington said it was 
part of the bigger picture. He said the scorecard was about the community and not explicitly about 
the County or the government. He said many groups had a role to play, including the hospitals 
and schools. He said the discussion was not exclusively about what the County should be doing, 
but should help to inform their investments as a County.  
 
Chair Jerrell said they were aware they had 5,000 unvaccinated children in the school system, 
but if they extrapolated that number to the broader community they were not tracking, those 
people were also likely not getting other sources of care. He said there was always room for 
improvement.  
 
Commissioner Meier left the meeting at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
26- 0013  Proposed Board of Health Rule Revisions  
 
 
The Board received an overview of proposed Board of Health rule revisions related to 
environmental health services 
 
Background:  Dr. Washington will provide an overview of proposed Board of Health rule revisions 
related to environmental health services. 
 
Dr. Washington gave the presentation. 
 

Proposed Board of Health Rule Revisions
Presented to the Mecklenburg 

Board of County Commissioners
January 13, 2026

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

20 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Directives related to health
• Apply throughout County

oincluding in municipalities
• Can be adopted by BOCC 

oacting as the Consolidated Human Services Agency 
oexercising the authority of a Board of Health in 

Mecklenburg County

1

Overview of Board of Health Rules

 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Have the force of law
• Enforcement tools:

oCriminal - Misdemeanor
oCivil - Injunction
oAdministrative - Fine 

1

Overview of Board of Health Rules - continued

 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Heath Rules

• Requirements to adopt, amend or repeal BOH Rule
o10 days notice
oPublication in local newspaper

1

Overview of Board of Health Rules - continued

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

21 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Repeal 1 current Board of Health Rule
- Residential Swimming Pools

• Amend 2 current Board of Health Rules
- Child Day Care Homes
- Groundwater Wells

1

Recommendations for Board of Health Rules

 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Rule adopted in 1999; most recently amended in 2023
• Purpose of Rule - establish safety standards for residential 

swimming pools
• Reason to Repeal Rule:

oSL 2025-94 (H926) amended NC Gen. Stat. 130A-39 and 
removed local authority to adopt rules related to 
residential swimming pools

1

Residential Swimming Pools

 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Rule adopted in 1999; most recently amended in 2023
• Purpose of Rule – establish minimum health and safety 

standards for family child care homes not covered by NC 
DHHS sanitation regulations; require annual operating 
permit

• Proposed amendments:
oChange name from “Child Day Care Homes” to “Family 

Child Care Homes” to align with NC Child Development 
and Early Education (DCDEE) terminology

1

Child Day Care Homes/Family Child Care Homes

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

22 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Proposed amendments - continued
oUpdate definition of “child care” to align with DCDEE 

definition
oRemove enforcement of building code and zoning 

requirements (outside scope of EHS authority)
oRemove requirements related to swimming pools on 

property (no longer have authority to regulate private 
pools)

1

Child Day Care Homes/Family Child Care Homes - continued

 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Proposed amendments - continued
oUpdate sanitation requirements to better align with 

requirements of licensed child care centers
oAdd personnel health, safety and hygiene requirements 

to align with requirements of licensed child care centers
oAdd authority for the Health Director to suspend or 

revoke permit for failure to comply with Rules

1

Child Day Care Homes/Family Child Care Homes - continued

 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Rule adopted in 2004; most recently amended in 2011
• Purpose of Rule – requires registration, permitting and 

monitoring of certain wells in Mecklenburg County
• Proposed amendments:

oDivide into 2 separate rules:
• Private Drinking Water Supply Wells
• Wells Other Than Drinking Water Supply Wells

oIrrigation, TNC/NTNC and monitoring wells
1

Groundwater Wells

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

23 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Public Health Rules

• Proposed amendments – continued 
oUpdate statutory references
oAdd appeals procedures to each Rule consistent 

with state statute
oClarify that these are Board of Health Rules, not local 

ordinances or regulations

1

Groundwater Wells

 
 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Proposed amendments:
oAdopt State’s well construction standards
oArea of Regulated Groundwater Usage (ARGU) reviews 

that require restrictions i.e. (requiring full grout or 
sampling requirements) will be required to be recorded 
with the Register of Deeds prior to issuing a well permit

1

Private Drinking Water Supply Wells

 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• Proposed amendments:
oAdopt State’s well construction standards
oEliminate exemption for sites designated at high-risk 

from monitoring well payments
• Sites deemed “orphan” sites can still be exempted if 

monitoring wells are installed to determine 
responsible party for contamination

1

Wells Other Than Drinking Water Supply Wells

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

24 
 

M e c k N C . g o v

Board of Health Rules

• BOCC, acting as CHSA, will vote on these proposals at an 
upcoming meetings

• If BOCC votes to approve these changes, notice will be 
published in local newspaper

• Changes will be effective 10 days after publication

1

Next Steps

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Altman asked whether all changes were being updated by the General Assembly 
and whether they had any way to avoid them. County Attorney Wade shook his head no. Dr. 
Washington said they were anticipating future changes and that there were no threats to public 
health, other than the residential pools rule. He said they couldn’t take any action due to the 
General Assembly.  
 
Commissioner Powell said there were many questions raised in her district and in Commissioner 
Leakes's district, and that so many people were connected to wells. She said she would like to 
request a meeting with Environmental Health.  
 
 
26- 0021  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
26-0023  NEW TIEM: Closed Session  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to go into Closed Session for the following purpose(s): Discuss Personnel Matter. 

The Board went into Closed Session at 4:13 p.m. and came back into Open Session at 4:23 p.m. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Leake seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to return to Open Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting adjourned 
at 4:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

25 

_________________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board   Mark  D. Jerrell, Chair 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


